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NOTICE TO ALL PROPOSERS 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
TO THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

 
TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY PROJECT 

 
10124625 FLUORINE FREE FOAM (F3) TRANSITION 

 
DECEMBER 4, 2025 

 
The following Addendum dated December 4, 2025, shall be made as part of the Request for 
Proposal (RFP) dated November 10, 2025, for 10124625 Fluorine Free Foam (F3) Transition. 
 

GENERAL 

1. The Pre-Proposal Meeting Summary dated December 1, 2025, and associated sign-in 
sheets are attached to this Addendum No. 1. 

 

CHANGES TO DOCUMENTS  

1. Section VI, Item 8 is hereby revised as follows: 
 

F. Proposal Price 
 

Total All-Inclusive Price should contain all direct and indirect costs, including out-of-pocket 
expenses, for performing the services as described in the Request for Proposals. 
 
Selection Criteria  Relative Weight of Selection 

Criteria  
(Total = 100 points)  

(A) Proposed approach, scope, and schedule, including 
method of disposal/destruction  

30 

(B) Firm Qualifications and Experience  20  
(C) Staff Qualifications and Experience (Project Team)  20  
(D) Client References  Pass/Fail 
(E) Quality Control Plan  5  
(F) Proposal Price 25 
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2. Section VI – Selection Process, Item 4: Form of Proposals in the RFP is hereby revised as 

follows: The SF-330 is not a requirement for proposals under this solicitation. 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 

Q1. What is the volume of AFFF tank on Rosenbauer 4x4 – 120 or 210?  

Answer: The Rosenbauer tank capacity is 210 gallons. 

Q2. Is there additional old AFFF stock needing disposal? 

Answer: TAA maintains a store of AFFF onsite to maintain compliance with FAA requirements 
for commercial airports. Our ultimate goal is to be AFFF-free once the TAA ARFF fleet is fully 
transitioned to F3. We envision that destruction/disposal of all remaining bulk/stock AFFF 
should be able to occur as part of this project, should this opportunity align with the scope of 
work selected by TAA.    

Q3. How long does TAA plan on taking for testing and calibration between each truck? 

Answer: TAA is replacing two of its existing trucks with brand-new units. The two trucks being 
retired from service will not require calibration and testing. We envision that these trucks 
would be cleaned first, thereby removing the buffer needed to allow for testing and calibration 
between trucks.  

Q4.  Can you provide the SDS of the AFFF in use at the airport? 

Answer: Please see data sheet attached. 

Q5. Is there a forklift available and if so, what is the capacity? 

Answer: TAA requires contractors to source their own equipment for project work.  

Q6. Will the airport/fire department escort contractors or will badging be required? 

Answer: The need for badging versus escorting will be determined by the scope of work 
selected for this project. Badging may not be ideal for a short-term project with minimal 
contractor personnel. On the other hand, escorting may not be ideal for a longer project 
requiring multiple personnel onsite. And should the scope not require airfield access, neither 
may be needed.  

Q7. First Qualifications and Experience, P. 6: Will a team member (subcontractor) project be 
considered as a comparable project under this section, or must all projects be completed by the 
prime firm? 

Answer: The project can be considered by identifying the subcontractor. 
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Q8. Form of Proposals, P. 8: This paragraph references an SF-330.  Is an SF-330 required? 

Answer: Please refer to “Changes to Documents,” Item No. 2 at the beginning of the 
addendum, which updates Section VI – Selection Process, Item 4: Form of Proposals in the RFP. 

Q9. Please confirm that the appendix with resumes are not considered part of the 25-page 
proposal text. 

Answer: Correct. Resumes are not included in 25-page limit. 

Q10. Please provide the specific AFFF details (or Safety Data Sheet) in each ARFF vehicle. 
 
Answer: Please see data sheet attached. 
 
Q11. The RFP states, "Following completion of the cleaning and rinsing process, each unit will 
be transferred to the TAA Maintenance fleet facility for input of F3 and calibration.  The 
SELECTION PROCESS Item 3b. requests a schedule duration for calibration.                                                                                                                                     
Please confirm if both replenishment and calibration of F3 are included in the current scope of 
work? If yes, provide the F3 specification and what calibration is required. 
 
Answer: SOLBERG® 3% MIL-SPEC Data Sheet https://www.perimeter-solutions.com/en/class-b-
foam/3-mil-spec-sfff/  The scope wouldn’t include them performing the test rather the capture 
of foam and water produced by the test. 
 
Q12. Will TAA provide a specific area on TUS property to perform the draining and cleaning 
scope (Item I)? Is water and 120 V power available at this location? 
 
Answer: We assume that the work will be done onsite and pulled up aerial imagery of two 
potential locations (the TAA Maintenance yard and the TAA Fire Station) in the pre-proposal 
meeting. We do expect that respondents to the RFP will identify a work area (be it onsite or off) 
in their proposed scope. We can confirm that power and water are available at the locations we 
highlighted in the meeting. 
 
Q13. The RFP states, "TUS ARFF units will be serviced individually, with only 1 unit to be taken 
out of service at any time." Will TAA allow “sequential and consecutive” cleaning of each ARFF 
vehicle to complete all four vehicles during the same mobilization? 
 
Answer: Cleaning will be sequential; we anticipate that cleaning of trucks slated for retirement 
will occur first, thereby removing the need to wait for F3 calibration and testing before moving 
on to those immediately following. However, to assure that we maintain operational readiness 
and FAA compliance within our fleet, we cannot necessarily guarantee that each unit will be 
moved through the process consecutively.  
 

https://www.perimeter-solutions.com/en/class-b-foam/3-mil-spec-sfff/
https://www.perimeter-solutions.com/en/class-b-foam/3-mil-spec-sfff/
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Q14. Item II. Please define "proper TAA liability free disposal" and "confirmed zero TAA residual 
liability for the PFAS disposal.” NOTE: Even destruction technologies generate residuals. In 
addition, RCRA TSD Facilities provide ownership and liability protection for EPA-approved 
disposal methodologies regarding PFAS. 
 
Answer: Proposers should articulate how their approach will address the residual liability risks 
to the TAA associated with the disposal of PFAS from the AFFF under the scope of work. 
 
Q15. Item 4 - Form of Proposals. Please state what TAA considers a KEY TEAM MEMBER. 
 
Answer: A key team member is one who will spend the bulk of their time on this project. 
 
Q16. Please state TAA's preference for cleaning. Does TAA prefer to comply with Federal DoD 
requirements (rinse out foam only) or achieve a higher degree of PFAS removal via a cleaning 
agent? 
 
Answer: TAA’s preference is to clean our trucks to a higher degree than what we understand 
can be achieved through a single rinse with water (per the DoD recommendations). Having said 
this, we will take numerous criteria into consideration when selecting our preferred scope and 
approach. 
 
Q17. Section 8 - Selection Criteria. The Quality Control Plan is referenced as part of the 
Selection Criteria. However, Section 3F states "The QCP shall be submitted to TAA for approval 
and acceptance prior to beginning any work on the design documents. The QCP shall be 
prepared in accordance with International Standards Organization (ISO) 9001 guidelines. Please 
confirm if TAA requires the QCP to be submitted as part of the PROPOSAL, within the 25-page 
limit restriction OR after award but prior to beginning work? 
 
Answer: TAA would want to see their typical QCP not this project specific. The final QCP will be 
finalized upon contract award.  
 
Q18. For pricing purposes, please confirm the contract type (i.e. T&M, Firm Fixed Price, Other). 
Please confirm that the maximum aggregate Compensation to be paid to  
Vendor under this Agreement shall be $500,000. 
 
Answer: The contract type is not to exceed. There is no maximum aggregate compensation to 
be paid to vendor. 
 
Q19. For pricing purposes, should we assume each ARFF vehicle's foam tank is filled to 
capacity? 
 
Answer: Yes 
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Q20. Can TAA provide photos/schematics of each ARFF asset to identify access to tanks? 
 
Answer: TAA will work with the selected company/proposal to ensure personnel have all of the 
information required to successfully design and execute this project.  
 
Q21. Does TAA have any restrictions on combining field roles, such as safety and quality, with 
other operational personnel? 
 
Answer: We are open to any personnel framework that will produce a safe, efficient, and 
effective environment for this project.  
 
Q22. Please confirm if a completed SF-300 Form is required with the proposal submittal. 
 
Answer: Please refer to “Changes to Documents,” Item No. 2 at the beginning of the 
addendum, which updates Section VI – Selection Process, Item 4: Form of Proposals in the RFP. 
 
Q23. Please confirm that a PRICE PROPOSAL is required with the PROPOSAL, and that TAA will 
negotiate with only the final selected contractor after the interview. No format was provided 
for presenting the PRICING. 
 
Answer: Price Proposal was addressed under “Change to Documents” item No. 1 at the 
beginning of the addendum. No specific format will be provided for presenting pricing; please 
submit your pricing sheet in the format your company prefers. TAA will begin negotiation with 
the highest scoring proposer after the interview and final scores are tabulated. If TAA fails to 
reach a contract with the highest scoring proposer, TAA will cancel negotiations with the 
highest scoring proposer and commence negotiations with the second highest scoring 
proposer. 
 
Q24. Will the TAA reconsider the method of proposal delivery and accept ELECTRONIC copies or 
links to a drop box? 
 
Answer: TAA requires hard copies, one (1) original and five (5) copies. Please refer to SECTION 
VI, Item 5 of the RFP for detailed instructions on “Submission of Proposals.” 
 
Q25: Is the RFP document posted online? 
 
Answer: The Notice is posted online. The RFP is not posted online. You can obtain a full copy of 
the RFP by contacting Matti Garry at mgarry@flytuscon.com. 
 
Q26. Can you confirm the exact quantity and container types of all backstock AFFF requiring 
destruction? 
 

mailto:mgarry@flytuscon.com


 

Addendum No. 1 Page 6 of 6 10124625 Fluorine Free Foam (F3) Transition  
12/4/2025 
 
7250 South Tucson Boulevard, Suite 300, Tucson, Arizona 85756      TEL 520-573-8100       FAX 520-573-8008    www.flytucson.com 

Answer: The foam is packaged in 5-gallon containers. TAA projects that approximately 1,500 
gallons will be on hand at the anticipated start of the project. 
 
Q27. Are the 5-gallon AFFF backstock buckets currently palletized? 
 
Answer: Yes 
 
Q28. Can you confirm the voltage and amp rating of the welder receptacle on-site? 
 
Answer: 240 Volts 50 amp. 
 
Q29. What are the amp capacities of the 120V receptacles on-site? 
 
Answer: 20 amps. 
 
Q30. Will restrooms be available for the team to use during field activities? 
 
Answer: Restrooms may be available depending on the location where work is taking place. If 
work is taking place at the TAA Maintenance yard, onsite restrooms can be made available. If 
the work is to be staged at other locations on airport property, the contractor will need to 
provide alternatives. Please note that TAA's only public restrooms are in the main terminal and 
TAA does not provide portable toilets for onsite projects. 
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PRE-PROPOSAL MEETING SUMMARY 
 
Project Number/Name: 10124625 Fluorine-Free Foam (F3) Transition 
 
Date: Monday, December 1, 2025 
 
Time: 10:00 a.m. 
 
Location: TAA - Catalina Room 
 
Project Funding: TAA 
 
TAA Contract Administrator: Sara Perry 
 
TAA Project Director: Becca Cammack and Tom Tucker 
 
SIGN-IN AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

1. See attached sign-in sheet for attendees. 
 

2. Sara Perry welcomed all attendees and made brief introductions.  She indicated that the 
minutes of the pre-proposal meeting and the sign-in sheets would be distributed to all 
attendees and RFP holders of record. 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

1. TAA intends to award this contract by Wednesday, February 11, 2026. The anticipated 
project completion date is to be determined. 

2. Currently this project will be funded by TAA funds, with a possibility of future grant 
funding.   

3. No representative or agent of the Respondent may contact any member of the staff or 
Selection Committee, any member or director of TAA or any other agent or consultant 
of TAA, either directly or indirectly, except as follows: all questions related to the RFP or 
RFP process and questions regarding the project may be directed in writing to Sara Perry 
at sperry@flytucson.com. TAA shall not be held responsible for any oral instructions. 
Any changes to this RFP will be in the form of an Addendum, which will be furnished to 
all registered RFP holders. 

4. This RFP does not obligate TAA to award the contract to any firm or to pay any cost 
incurred in the proposal process or in the preparation of Request for Proposals (RFP) 
submitted in response to this RFP. TAA reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals 
or to accept any firm which is deemed to be advantageous to the public and TAA. 

mailto:sperry@flytucson.com
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5. The Proposal and other requested information must be completed, in its entirety, to the 
best of the Respondent’s ability and the Respondent must represent and warrant that 
all information contained therein is true and correct to the best of Respondent’s 
knowledge. 

6. Until an award and execution of a contract by TAA, only the name of each Respondent 
on the short list may be made available to the public. All other information received by 
TAA in response to this RFP or contained in the Proposals shall be confidential. The 
Proposals will be open to public inspection after the contract is awarded and executed 
by TAA. To the extent the firm designates, and TAA concurs, trade secrets and other 
proprietary data contained in the firms’ Proposals will be kept confidential. 

7. Any questions that Respondents may have about the RFP, or the project should be 
emailed to Sara Perry at sperry@flytucson.com no later than Monday, December 8, 
2025. Answers will be provided via Addendum to all RFP holders of record.  A final 
Addendum, if necessary, will be issued on Wednesday, December 10, 2025.  
Respondents who have obtained a copy of the RFP through a source other than TAA 
should confirm that they are included on the TAA RFP holder list to ensure receipt of all 
Addenda. 

8. It is the policy of TAA to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprise firms (DBEs) 
have a fair and equal opportunity to participate in TAA’s contracts.  Pursuant to the U.S. 
Department of Transportation’s Interim Final Rule (IFR) issued September 30, 2025, (see 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise in 
Airport Concessions Program Implementation Modifications, 90 Fed. Reg. No. 190, page 
47969-47982), until TAA completes the reevaluation process described in the IFR, TAA 
will not include DBE contract goals or count DBE participation toward overall program 
goals.  

 
Respondents are still encouraged to pursue subcontracting and partnership 
opportunities with disadvantaged and small businesses. If you have any questions about 
TAA's DBE Program, please contact Bert Resimont, TAA DBE Liaison Officer, at 520-573-
8100. 
 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Sara Perry indicated that PROPOSAL requirements are outlined in Section VI (6) of the 
RFP, beginning on page 5. 

2. Respondents should review the insurance requirements in Section V (5) page 3 of the 
RFP to confirm they can comply. 

3. Client references provided in the Proposals should be current, limited to the last 5 years, 
and should not include TAA. 

mailto:sperry@flytucson.com
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4. Failure on the part of a Respondent to provide any portion of the required 
documentation may be cause for rejection of the Proposal. Resolution of any conflict 
between any of the PROPOSAL documents that may arise shall be at TAA’s sole 
discretion. 

5. Proposals are due on or before 2:00 p.m. Local Tucson Time on Tuesday, December 16, 
2025, at TAA’s Administration Building, 7250 S Tucson Blvd Ste 300, Tucson, Arizona 
85756 and must be time stamped by Procurement to record TAA’s receipt of the 
Proposal. Proposals submitted after that time and date may not be accepted. 

6. One (1) original and five (5) copies of the PROPOSAL should be submitted to TAA and 
should be clearly labeled with the project title and number and the Respondent’s name 
and addressed to the attention of Sara Perry, Procurement Administrator. 

7. Proposals may be withdrawn either personally or by written request any time before 
the scheduled date and time of receipt. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

1. TAA is conducting a one-step selection process in accordance with the requirements of 
Title 34 A.R.S. to select one firm to provide Professional Services for the project listed in 
the RFP. 

2. Proposals from interested firms will be evaluated by an in-house Selection Committee, 
which will rank the Proposals based on qualifications and select three to five 
Respondents to be short-listed. All proposers will be notified as to which firms have 
been selected for the short list.  

3. Short-listed firms must be available for an interview scheduled for Tuesday, January 20, 
2026. 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

1. Tom Tucker and Becca Cammack will review the Scope of Work. 

DISCUSSION: 

The floor was opened to questions and answers and discussion followed. 

Q1. Do you have different clean "end points" for the trucks to be eliminated vs brought back 
online?  

Answer: We require the same level of cleaning for all trucks, whether they are leaving the fleet 
or remaining in service. The goal is to clean them to a standard that allows for incineration, 
resale, donation, or continued use. In short, all trucks should be cleaned to the same level, 
regardless of their ultimate end-use. 
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Q2. Do you want contractors to assist with output testing? Specifically, containing and 
disposing of the output testing material?  

Answer: We would like to hear ideas, as incorporating the F3 output would be a value-add for 
us. Effective methods to help contain the F3 from output-based testing will be a welcome 
inclusion into the scope. 

Q3. Will you be using NFF for the output testing or will a surrogate be used?  

Answer: We assume our F3 will serve as the surrogate. The test will involve using the actual 
foam (as required by the FAA for output-based testing). 

Q4. Can you state which ARFFs are being "retired”, and which go back into fleet? 

Answer: The vehicles that are being retired are 762 and 766. The vehicle that is remaining in 
the fleet is 763 and 760. The 760 has already been transitioned, meaning the old tank has been 
removed (including some connecting hoses and valves) and a new tank is in the process of 
being installed. It’s now just a matter of dealing with the 40-gallon foam that it maintains. 

Q5. Is there a water hose and electrical connections close by? 

Answer: Yes, at both locations. 

Q6. During the F3 calibration test are you spraying on the ground or looking for containment for 
it? 

Answer: By definition, output-based testing requires discharging foam from the hose. We will 
ideally discharge into some form of containment. 

Q7. Is there a forklift or pallet jack available? 

Answer: TAA requires contractors to source their own equipment for project work.  

Q8. 110 volt? 

Answer: Yes, 110. 

Q9. Do you have 240 or 480 available? 

Answer: We currently have 240 available. 

Q10. Quantify total AFFF disposal, is there going to be more gallons onsite needed to dispose 
other than trucks? Is new F3 products needed, or no? 

Answer: Yes, TAA maintains the reserve amount required for FAA compliance. And TAA is 
procuring F3 through a separate procurement effort. No F3 is needed for this project. 
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Q11. Will TAA provide a list of contractors bidding the entire transition?  

Answer: The attendee list, including all participants both online and in person, will be attached 
to the addendum along with the pre-proposal meeting minutes.  

Q12. How much AFFF will be cut out? 

Answer: 2000 gallons is the estimate for total volume onsite. 

Q13. Can you further define "proper TAA liability free disposal" and "confirmed zero TAA 
residual liability for the PFAS disposal?" 

Answer: Proposers should articulate how their approach will address the residual liability risks 
to the TAA associated with the disposal of PFAS from the AFFF under the scope of work. 

Q14. For AP-766, is the foam tank volume 120 gallons or 210? 

Answer: 210 

Q15. There was an attachment for a price sheet. There was a cover letter for a price sheet. You 
don’t want any prices at this time? I just want to confirm you don’t want us to return any price-
related information for a complete proposal. 

Answer: Price Proposal was addressed under “Change to Documents” item No. 1 at the 
beginning of the addendum. No specific format will be provided for presenting pricing; please 
submit your pricing sheet in the format your company prefers. TAA will begin negotiation with 
the highest scoring proposer after the interview and final scores are tabulated. If TAA fails to 
reach a contract with the highest scoring proposer, TAA will cancel negotiations with the 
highest scoring proposer and commence negotiations with the second highest scoring 
proposer. 

Q16. What type of containers is the AFFF floor stock concentrate in?  

Answer: 5-gallon buckets 

Q17. Final Rinse 1PPB or less PFAS quantity in rinse the expected testing results per HPLC test 
report for tanks? 

Answer: If you’re asking whether the final rinse should achieve one part per billion or less PFAS 
concentration, the expected testing results will depend on the disposal requirements for the 
option you propose and we select. We are not generating drinking water; we are generating a 
waste stream. Therefore, the question is: what level of PFAS removal is necessary to meet 
disposal requirements if destruction of the waste stream is not feasible? 

Q18. Is there any PPB that can be discharged to waste water? Minimum Standard?  
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Answer: There is no level of AFFF that can be discharged to wastewater. Our local wastewater 
authority has completely prohibited AFFF as a contaminant or product they will accept. 
Therefore, we cannot discharge any amount of AFFF into the industrial wastewater stream—
either on-site or off-site. 

Q19. Can we work on the weekends? 

Answer: Generally, the airport permits work on weekends. There is no specific cutoff time 
restricting activities; however, certain notifications and permissions may be required. 

Q20. Is it possible for us to go take a look at the maintenance facility to see eyes on it after this? 

Answer: Yes 

Q21. How long does it take for calibration testing? 

Answer: Depends on the apparatus. The FAA requires us to do an output-based test. For every 
vehicle that we put new F3 in, we have to discharge it onto the ground and ensure that it’s 
performing at a 3% mixture for the proportionate. 

Q22. Have you already purchased or chosen your foam manufacturer for your F3? 

Answer: That’s a separate effort and that purchase is underway. 

Q23. Is there a time period for that one truck that you want to get back in service and 
transition? 

Answer: There are several moving parts to this answer. TAA has two new trucks that are being 
delivered sometime in January. Our goal is to have those trucks calibrated and in service prior 
to transitioning the existing fleet; in this case we can offer more flexibility. Overall, we want the 
downtime to be very minimal. It all depends on the output-based testing process. 

Q24. In that facility is there a hydrant available? 

Answer: Yes, it is easy to get to. 

Attendees were reminded that the PROPOSAL due date and time is Tuesday, December 16, 
2025, at 2:00 p.m. 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:30 a.m. and a site visit was conducted. 

The above is intended to be a summary of the proceedings as recalled by Sara Perry. The 
proceedings were tape-recorded, and the tape is on file in the TAA Planning & Development 
Department. 

The End 
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10124625 - Fluorine Free Foam (F3) Transition

Lisa Kammer Weston Solutions Inc lisa.kammer@westonsolutions.com

Grayson Basalyga Langan Engineering and 
Environmental Services, LLC (215) 845-8923 GBasalyga@Langan.com

Daniel Bosworth Langan Engineering and 
Environmental Services, LLC dbosworth@Langan.com

Greg Knight thermalrs Engineering and 
Environmental Services, LLC

e472819@thermalrs.com

James Dugosh alamo1 jdugosh@alamo1.com

Keith Durden fireapparatus  Keith@fireapparatus.co

Patrick McKeown ECT2 pmckeown@ect2.com

mailto:lisa.kammer@westonsolutions.com
mailto:GBasalyga@Langan.com
mailto:dbosworth@Langan.com
mailto:e472819@thermalrs.com
mailto:e472819@thermalrs.com
mailto:jdugosh@alamo1.com
mailto:jdugosh@alamo1.com
mailto:pmckeown@ect2.com
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